_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 8 December 2008 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

,,ﬂij:::i;> e > < /Z/

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chairman)

Councillor Dave Thompson (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Peter Blackmore

Councillor Sue Blackmore

Councillor John Bradshaw

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Mike Hodgkinson

Councillor Dave Leadbetter

Councillor Keith Morley

Councillor Shaun Osborne
Councillor Rob Polhill

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 471 7395 or ann.jones@halton.gov.uk
for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 12 January 2009



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No. Page No.
1. MINUTES 1-6
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that
item is reached, and, with personal and prejudicial interests
(subject to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for

Members), to leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting
on the item.

3. PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE 7-31
COMMITTEE

4. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 32

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Monday, 10 November 2008 in
the Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chairman), Thompson (Vice-Chairman),
P. Blackmore, S. Blackmore, Hignett, Hodgkinson, Leadbetter, Morley, Osborne
and Polhill

Apologies for Absence: Councillor J. Bradshaw
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: J. Farmer, A. Jones, E. Latham, A. Pannell, A. Plant,
M. Simpson, K. Sparks and J. Tully

Also in attendance: 3 Members of the public

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
DEV50 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13™ October
2008, having been printed and circulated, were taken as
read and signed as a correct record.

DEV51 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV52 - PLAN NO. 08/00470/FUL - APPLICATION FOR THE
PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BLOCK OF
DECK ACCESS FLATS AND CONSTRUCTION OF 36 NO.
NEW DWELLINGS (FOR RENT) AT NOS 1-16 AND 101-
140 KEEPERS WALK, CASTLEFIELDS, RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.




Page 2

It was noted that one letter of representation had

been received details of which were outlined in the report.

Members raised concerns in relation to the following:

additional safety measures with it being a school;
hours of construction and demolition;

residents parking; and

provision of recyclables.

In response it was noted that safety measures would
be met due to Construction Design Management (CDM)
regulations. It was advised that demolition would be
scheduled during the summer holidays and that the
Council’s highways department were satisfied with the
amended parking layout plans. It was also reported that the
condition relating to bins and storage could be expanded to

include recyclables.

RESOLVED: That the planning application be approved

subject to the following conditions:

1. Condition specifying amended plans (BE1);

2. Materials condition, requiring the submission and

approval of the materials to be used (BE2);

3. Landscaping condition, requiring the submission of
both hard and soft landscaping to include

replacement tree planting (BE2);

4. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be

submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

5. Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and

approved in writing (BE1);

6. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to

throughout the course of the development (BE1);

7. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties/

commencement of use (BE1);

8. Agreement and implementation of cycle parking

provision (TP6);
9. Finished floor and site levels (BE1);

10.Conditions relating to restriction of permitted
development rights relating to extensions and

outbuildings, and boundary fences etc; (BE1)

11. Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted

and approved in writing (PR14);

12.Conditions relating to tree protection during

construction (BE1);

13.Bins/ storage provision including recyclables (BE1);

and

Strategic Director
- Environment



DEVS3

DEV54

Page 3

14.Requiring details of solar panel installations (BE1).

- PLAN NO. 08/00479/FUL - APPLICATION FOR THE
ERECTION OF 15 DWELLINGS, PROVISION OF ACCESS
AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT EIGHT TOWERS PUBLIC
HOUSE, WEATES CLOSE, WIDNES.

The Committee was advised that the above-
mentioned planning application had been withdrawn by the
applicant.

- PLAN NO. 08/00481/FUL - APPLICATION FOR THE
PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BLOCK OF
DECK ACCESS FLATS AND CONSTRUCTION OF 34 NO.
FLATS INCLUDING CAR PARKING AND CYCLE
FACILITIES AT 101-244 HEDGE HEY, CASTLEFIELDS,
RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

One letter of representation had been received,
details of which are outlined in the report.

Members requested that the conditions be extended
in relation to bins and storage to include recyclables.

RESOLVED: That application No. 08/00481/FUL be
approved subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Condition specifying amended plans (BE1);

2. Materials condition, requiring the submission and
approval of the materials to be used (BE2);

3.Landscaping condition, requiring the submission of
both hard and soft landscaping to include
replacement tree planting (BE2);

4.Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be
submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

5.Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and
approved in writing (BE1);

6. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to
throughout the course of the development (BE1);

7.Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties/
commencement of use (BE1);

8. Agreement and implementation of cycle parking
provision (TP6);

Strategic Director
- Environment



DEVS55

DEV56

Page 4

9. Finished floor and site levels (BE1);

10.Site investigation, including mitigation to be
submitted and approved in writing (PR14);

11.Conditions relating to tree protection during

construction (BE1);

12.Bins/ storage provision to include recyclables (BE1);
and

13. Requiring details of solar panel installations (BE1).

- PLAN NO. 08/00484/FUL - APPLICATION FOR THE
ERECTION OF TWO NEW OFFICE BUILDINGS (USE
CLASS B1, 1654 SQ METRES) WITH ASSOCIATED
EXTERNAL WORKS AT THE HEATH BUSINESS AND
TECHNICAL PARK, THE HEATH, RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

It was reported that there would be no removal of
existing trees and the Council’s highway engineer had
assessed the amended parking ratio and it was now in
accordance with standards.

RESOLVED: That application No. 08/00484/FUL be
approved subject to the following conditions.

Time limit (BE1);

Specifying approved use (E3);

Tree protection conditions (BE1);

Route for construction traffic (BE1);

Travel plan update (TP16);

Drainage to pass through oil interceptor (BE1);
Materials to be used shall be in accordance
with plans details of coloured panels a facing
brick to be agreed (BE1); and

8. Construction management plan (BE1).

NoOoOR~WN =

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

It was reported that appeals had been received
following the Council’s refusal of the following applications:-

08/00367/COU Proposed use of existing building for
secure care and treatment of medium
and low secure mentally ill patients (25
No. medium and 50 No. low secure)

Strategic Director
- Environment



Page 5

Use Class C2 at Meadow Lodge,
Bennetts Lane, Widnes, Cheshire, WA8
0GT

08/00368/COU Proposed use of existing building for
secure care and treatment of low secure
mentally ill patients (Maximum 75
patients) Use Class C2A at Meadow
Lodge, Bennetts Lane, Widnes,
Cheshire, WA8 0GT

08/00382/FUL External alterations to  planning
application 05/00903/FUL at Meadow
Lodge, Bennetts Lane, Widnes,
Cheshire, WA8 0GT

Appeals were lodged following the Council’s refusal
of the following applications:-

Decisions had been received as follows :-

07/00767/FUL Proposed erection of 10 No. nursery
units for B1 and B8 uses at Catalyst
Trade Park, Waterloo Road, Widnes,
Cheshire

This appeal was allowed

The issues were that the development would
prejudice the delivery of the Mersey Gateway and the lack of
information contained within the submission in relation to a
flood risk assessment and traffic generation.

On the issue that the scheme would prejudice the
deliverability of the Mersey Gateway the Inspector
concluded within the development plan there is no
identifiable route, even though there is strong policy support
in local and regional policies. There was still a considerable
way to go before implementation of the project as at the time
of the report no date had been set for a Public Inquiry. He
considered that to allow the appellant’s proposal would not
make the process any more complex or that it would, on its
own, materially prejudice the achievement of the Council’'s
objective.

In relation to the lack of information, the Environment
Agency withdrew their objection following the refusal of the
proposal. The Inspector concluded that although the
information contained within the Design and Access




Page 6

Statement was sparse that the proposal would not have an
unacceptable impact on the highway network.

08/00203/FUL Proposed single storey side extension
at 85 Moughland Lane, Runcorn,
Cheshire, WA7 4SG

This appeal was allowed

The issues were whether the proposed extension
would lead to the loss of front to rear access and would
harm the appearance of the street scene because of its
affect on bin storage. The inspector concluded that there
were properties where the side gap had been completely
filled and that the bin storage could be adequately screened
and conditioned. As such, the proposed development would
not have an unacceptable effect on the appearance of the
area.

08/00282/COU Proposed change of use from shop
(Class A1) to hot food takeaway (Class
A5) at 44 Langdale Road, Runcorn,
Cheshire, WA7 5PU

This appeal was dismissed
The following applications have been withdrawn: -

08/00447/FUL Proposed single storey side/rear
extension at 29 Sandringham Road,
Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 9HD

08/00460/COU Proposed conversion of barn to dwelling
house at Barn Unit 3, Village Farm,
Chester Road, Daresbury, Warrington,
Cheshire, WA4 4AJ

08/00493/FUL Proposed first floor extension above
existing garage at 7 Lessingham Road,
Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 9F

Meeting ended at 6.38 p.m.



Page 7 Agenda ltem 3

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 8™ December 2008
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment

SUBJECT: Planning Applications to be determined by the
Committee

The following applications for planning permission are submitted to the
Committee for consideration with a recommendation in each case. Those
applications marked * are considered to have significant employment
implications.

An Amendments List, containing the categorisation of planning applications,
additional information and amendments to recommendations, will be
circulated to Committee Members before the meeting together with plans
showing the location of each application site. Those applications now before
the Committee, where the planning issues are considered clear by the
Chairman, will be included in List A. Unless a Member considers that
additional information is required on a particular application in List A it is
RECOMMENDED that each of the applications be determined (whether for
approval or for refusal) in accordance with the conditions or the reasons
printed in the Agenda and in the Amendments List previously circulated.

The remaining applications are included in List B. Together with those
applications about which Members require further information, List B
applications will be considered following determination of applications
remaining in List A.

PLAN NUMBER: 08/00459/FUL

APPLICANT: Liverpool Housing Trust and Riverside Housing
Association
PROPOSAL: 74 No. new dwellings for rent and shared ownership

comprising a mix of apartments, bungalows and 2, 3 and
4 bed houses

ADRESS OF SITE: Land Opposite Play Building, Barnfield Avenue,
Murdishaw

WARD: Norton South
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to Conditions

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:



Page 8

Adjoining properties have been consulted and the application advertised by
way of site and press notice. The Council’s Highways Engineer,
Environmental Health, Trees and Woodlands and Nature Conservation
Officers have been consulted, as have United Utilities, the Environment
Agency, Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and Woodland Trust.

United Utilities have confirmed that they raise no objections in principle. The
Council’s Environmental Health Officers have confirmed that they raise no
objections in principle subject to suitable ground investigation and mitigation
by condition. Consultation under the Health and Safety Executive’s (HSE)
PADHI+ system confirms that they do not advise, on safety grounds, against
the granting of planning permission in this case. 3 letters of representation
have been received drawing attention to a previously inaccurate description
and raising concerns about the traffic levels and impacts on the surrounding
highway network, loss of trees and wildlife habitat, loss of amenity value of
land, overlooking of existing properties and resultant loss of value.

Any further comments not covered within the body of this report will be
reported orally to the Committee.

SITE/LOCATION:

An area of approximately 1.8 Hectares of informal open space, to the west
side of Barnfield Avenue, Runcorn. The site is directly opposite Murdishaw
Community Centre and Play Buildings and adjoins Murdishaw Army Cadet
Hut and Railway Wood.

RELEVANT HISTORY:
None directly relevant.

UDP PLAN DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND SUSTAINABILITY
OBJECTIVES:

The site is identified as a Phase 2 Allocation for Housing Provision in the
adopted Halton Unitary Development Plan for development following May
2007. The SPD for New Residential Development is also considered of
relevance.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

Policy Considerations

The site is identified as a Phase 2 Allocation for Housing Provision in the
adopted Halton Unitary Development Plan for development following May
2007. As such, proposals for residential development on the site are
considered acceptable in principle.



Page 9

Design, Character and Amenity

The scheme proposes a mix of residential houses, bungalows and apartments
constructed predominantly of a mix of traditional brick with contrasting brick
feature detailing. Feature properties will also include zinc cladding to key
elevations and mono-pitched zinc roofs. The majority of properties will have a
mono-pitched roof design of modern construction with bungalows having a
more traditional dual-pitch, tiled roof. The proposed properties are of a
modern design but having reference to the scale and style of surrounding
existing properties constructed as part of the expansion of the Runcorn New
Town. The aim is for all to meet Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3.

The scheme is not wholly compliant in terms of minimum privacy distances
and garden provision when tested against standards that relate to new green
field development for open market housing. The scheme is substantially
removed from existing surrounding dwellings and such shortfalls therefore
relate to provision within the scheme itself. The scheme seeks to provide
social and affordable housing throughout and it is considered that adequate
provision can be made in terms private amenity space and privacy suited to
such a scheme.

The scheme has substantially altered form that as originally submitted
resulting in an overall reduction in the number of properties provided.
Amendments have been required to overcome issues discussed within this
report relating to provision of open space, protection of trees and providing
adequate tree replacement, highway matters and securing a quality of
scheme suited to the site. In addition, the scheme is a collaboration between
Housing Associations and subject to stipulations of the national funding body,
the Housing Corporation (now incorporated into the Homes and Communities
Agency). Such issues have all had to be balanced in the consideration of the
scheme.

Discussions are ongoing with the applicant in respect of a number of
outstanding issues and, in particular, the character of the scheme. It is,
however, considered that these can be adequately resolved to secure a
scheme of appropriate quality and Members will be updated accordingly. It is
however considered necessary to restrict permitted development rights for the
resultant dwellings to avoid potential over-development of the plots and to
safeguard residential amenity into the future.

Highways and Parking

Whilst the Council’'s Highways Engineer has confirmed that no significant
highway objections are raised in principle, the application as submitted raises
a number of issues relating to highways and parking, accessibility throughout
the scheme and access for emergency vehicles. The scheme is substandard
in terms of standard off-street parking provision. As the scheme is aimed at
the social rented sector and to provide affordable housing it is considered that
associated car ownership is likely to be relatively low and, as such, an
exception can be made in this case. Provision for such variation has



Page 10

previously been agreed for similar schemes within, for example, the
Castlefields regeneration area. Discussions are ongoing with the applicant
and the Council’s Highways Engineers to provide satisfactory resolution of
these outstanding issues and ensure that suitable pedestrian linkages are
provided throughout the scheme and that adequate provision can be made for
highway circulation, servicing and parking and Members will be updated
accordingly. It is, however, considered necessary to restrict permitted
development rights for frontage boundary treatments to allow control to be
retained over highway safety matters.

Loss of Trees

The proposals will result in the loss of a substantial belt of semi mature trees/
woodland along the southern and eastern boundaries of the site. These trees
were originally planted as part of the New Town development to provide a
screen and buffer to the adjoining bus way. Whilst these trees obviously
provide a prominent landscape feature and amenity value as a group, a tree
survey submitted with the scheme identifies no individual specimens within
this group of particular quality. The group has also been poorly maintained
and requires extensive work including selective pruning, felling and
replacement planting.

The Housing Associations are required by the terms of the Homes and
Communities Agency funding requirements to provide a minimum number of
dwellings on the site to secure funding and evidence provided to demonstrate
that this can not be satisfactorily achieved without the loss of trees. Felling of
smaller groups of trees within the woodland or those trees along the edges of
the woodland would be unviable as this would leave unsightly trees with
limited foliage at the new edges and result in future losses to wind as the
stability for the trees is provided as a group developing as the woodland has
matured.

The application has been amended to provide an albeit narrower belt of
replacement tree planting along these boundaries which can be designed with
appropriate species to be more suited to the new situation being located along
the rear gardens of residential properties thereby reducing potential conflicts
of overshadowing etc into the future. Whilst such loss is therefore regrettable
it is considered on balance that the wider benefits of the scheme outweigh
any harm resulting from the loss of the trees and that, with time, suitable
replacement planting can be properly maintained and given chance to mature.
Scope is also provided for tree planting within the scheme.

The site is also bounded by substantial mature woodland referred to as
Railway Wood. This woodland is owned and managed by The Woodland
Trust who have raised objections to the application in the form as originally
submitted due to proximity and layout of the new dwellings and likely impacts
on the long term health of trees at the woodland edge, and future
management costs and impacts resulting from the improved public access to
the woodland which results from the scheme. Amendments have been
requested to re-address the relationship and proximity to tress to be retained.



Page 11

Discussions are also ongoing between the developer and the Woodland Trust
to secure contributions towards increasing access to the woodland. Members
will be updated on the outcome of these negotiations.

The Councils Trees and Woodlands Officer has confirmed that, whilst the
trees would be retained in the ideal, he raises no significant objection to this
approach subject to appropriate replacement planting and adequate
protection of trees to be retained which can be adequately secured by
condition.

Ecology

The site is in close proximity to a number of ponds known to provide habitat to
Great Crested Newts which is a protected species and, as such, the
application is supported by and ecological survey. Whilst the site is within
500m of the ponds and could therefore be considered to provide habitat
potential, it is considered that the availability of surrounding habitat and the
barrier created by the intervening railway means that potential is limited. As
such it is considered that no further survey work is required with regards to
Great Crested Newts. The site includes a fire-damaged oak within areas of
woodland to be retained. Surveys are currently underway to identify whether
this is used as a bat roost and to identify any mitigation measures required to
protect any such roost from the likely impacts of construction activity. It is also
required under European legislation that the site is surveyed for ground
nesting birds prior to works commencing and that any nests found protected
accordingly.

The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has confirmed that he agrees with
the approach taken and it is considered that any such mitigation as required
can be secured through appropriate conditions. Members will be updated
accordingly.

Flooding

The site is itself not considered to be at risk from flooding. The site area is
however, in excess of 1 Ha and, in accordance with Planning policy
Statement 25: Flooding, a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been produced
to ensure that the development itself does not add unduly to run-off rates and
potential flooding in the wider area. On that basis the Environment Agency
has confirmed that they are able to withdraw their original objection subject to
conditions ensuring that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved FRA and requiring implementation of mitigation measures to limit
and manage surface water run-off.

Open Space

For any market housing scheme of such a scale, provision and/or contribution
would be required for open space in accordance with the Council’s adopted
SPD on Open Space. In particular, provision for amenity space, children and
young people and allotments are considered deficient in the area. This is



Page 12

however a Housing Association scheme to provide social housing to rent and
affordable housing through a shared ownership scheme. It is therefore
considered that to require such contribution based on market housing
requirements would be unviable in this case.

An area of informal open space is to be introduced through amendments to
the scheme. The applicants also fund the adjoining community centre and
play centre, which includes provision for children’s play areas and they have
agreed to open up access to these facilities. Discussions are also ongoing
with the Woodland Trust to secure methods of improving access to the
adjoining woodland as a community facility and members will be updated
orally on this matter.

Contamination

The Council’s Environmental Health Officers have confirmed that, due to the
sensitivity of the proposed use, detailed ground investigation should be
provided. No objection is raised in principle however and it is considered that
this can be adequately secured by condition.

Summary and Conclusion

The submitted proposals raise a number of issues and discussions are
ongoing. The scheme is a collaboration between Housing Associations and
subject to stipulations of the national funding body, the Housing Corporation
(now incorporated into the Homes and Communities Agency). And the unique
issues raised by such an approach have all had to be balanced in the
consideration of the scheme. It is considered that the outstanding matters
can be resolved and that the scheme offers the potential for a good quality of
development suited to the character of the site and the wider area and that
the requirements and aspirations of UDP policy and SPD can be met.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to a legal agreement and conditions relating to the following:

a) the applicant entering into a legal or other appropriate agreement
relating to provision of off site open space as required.

b) Conditions relating to the following:

1. Requiring the development to be carried out in accordance with the

approved phasing plan and requiring conditions for each phase to be

discharged in accordance with the specified timescale for each phase

(BE1)

Condition specifying amended plans (BE1)

Materials condition, requiring the submission and approval of the

materials to be used (BE2)

4. Landscaping condition, requiring the submission of both hard and soft
landscaping to include replacement tree planting. (BE2)

A



8.

9.

Page 13

Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be submitted and
approved in writing. (BE2)

Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and approved in writing. (BE1)
Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to throughout the course
of the development. (BE1)

Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be constructed prior to
occupation of properties/ commencement of use. (BE1)

Conditions relating to the agreement and implementation of bin stores
cycle parking provision (TP6)

10. Submission and agreement of finished floor and site levels. (BE1)
11. Conditions relating to restriction of permitted development rights

relating to extensions and outbuildings and boundary fences etc. (BE1)

12.Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted and approved in

writing. (PR14)

13. Conditions relating to tree protection during construction (BE1)
14.Requiring Development be carried out in accordance with the approved

FRA and mitigation measures (PR16)

c) That if the S106 Agreement or alternative arrangement is not executed

within a reasonable period of time, authority be delegated to the
Operational Director — Environmental and Regulatory Services in
consultation with the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Committee to
refuse the application on the grounds that it fails to comply with Policy
S25 (Planning Obligations).

PLAN NUMBER: 08/00534/COU

APPLICANT: Mrs P Wallace

PROPOSAL.: Proposed change of use of vacant land to
residential garden and erection of boundary fence

ADDRESS OF SITE: Land adjacent to 11 James Close, Widnes

WARD: Riverside

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

Approve with conditions.

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The proposal was advertised by way of site notice and neighbours consulted.
The Council’s Highways Engineer and Environmental Health Officer have also
been consulted. Natural England has also been notified.



Page 14

Natural England and the Council’s Highways Engineer have no objections to
the proposal. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has no objection
but requires a ground investigation and remediation plan.

A petition with eight signatures has been received from local residents in
objection to the proposed development. The grounds of objection relate to an
unsightly appearance, which would be out of character with the rest of the
Close and that the proposal would compromise the future use of the land for
extra parking for which there is currently minimal.

Three other representations from local residents have been received with
concerns about the proposal. These concerns relate to existing parking
problems in the area, the loss of land which could have been utilised for
parking, the potential highway hazard for pedestrians created as a result of
the erection of a fence, an eye sore within the Close, and the sale of the land
to the applicant.

Any further representations received will be reported orally to the Committee.

SITE/LOCATION:

The site comprises a small area of open land which is situated adjacent to 11
James Close and is approximately 60 square metres in area. The site falls
within the established residential area and forms part of incidental open space
located at various intervals within the Close. To the west of the site is an
existing alleyway located to the rear of properties on Mersey Road, which was
fenced off some time ago. The site adjoins an existing parking area to the
north.

RELEVANT HISTORY:
There is no planning history of relevance to the proposed change of use.

DEVELOPMENT  PLAN  DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The site falls within a ‘Primarily Residential Area’ and within the ‘Developed
Coastal Zone’ of the Halton UDP and the key policies, which relate to the
development, are:

BE1 ‘General Requirements for Development’, BE2 ‘Quality of Design’, PR14
‘Contaminated Land’, TP12 ‘Car Parking’, GE30 ‘The Mersey Coastal Zone’,
BE22 ‘Boundary Walls and Fences’'.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

The application proposes the change of use from vacant land to a residential
garden and the erection of a boundary fence. The work will require the
removal of an existing brick wall which currently bounds the residential garden
at 11 James Close. The proposed fence around the new perimeter will be 2



Page 15

metres in height and constructed from timber and concrete fence panels and
concrete posts. The main issues arising are detailed below:

Street Scene and Appearance

Concerns have been raised from neighbouring properties with regard to the
appearance of the proposal as an eyesore within the Close. The proposed
boundary fence will project 2.6 metres from the side of the property when
viewed from the front elevation of 11 James Close. The remainder of the
fence will be to the north of the property and therefore hidden from immediate
view when entering James Close. It is therefore considered that the proposal
will have minimal impact on the street scene and visual amenity of James
Close itself. In addition, a condition has been applied that the fence be
painted dark brown to reduce any impact. Therefore the proposal is
considered to comply with Policies BE1, BE2 and BE22.

Highways

Local residents have raised concerns, that the proposal will prejudice the
future development of the open areas within James Close for parking.
However, given that the land in question is relatively small, it is not considered
that this would prevent the remainder of the land from being utilised for
parking.

Concerns have been received from the occupier of a neighbouring property
with regard to a potential highway hazard as a result of the fence. However,
the Council’s Highways Engineer has raised no concerns with the proposal,
and it is therefore considered that no highways hazards will be created. The
proposal therefore complies with Policy BE1 of the UDP.

Conclusion

The proposed development will bring an area of vacant land into active private
use. It is considered that there would be minimal impact on visual amenity
and the street scene along James Close given its modest size and positioning
so that it is partially hidden. Concerns relating to the sale of the land are not
addressed in this report, as they are not considered to be a planning matter.
It is considered that the proposed garden would provide extra security within
the parking areas for not only the applicant but for others who park within
James Close.

As such, the application complies with Policies BE1, BE2, PR14, TP12, GE30
and BE22 of the Halton UDP and is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard condition relating to timescale and duration of the permission;



Page 16

2. Within three months of its installation, the timber fence panels shall be
painted dark brown to match the existing building and maintained to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority (BE2).

3. Prior to commencement of development, site investigation, including
mitigation to be submitted and approved in writing. (PR14).

PLAN NUMBER: 08/00537/COU

APPLICANT: Mr A Malik

PROPOSAL: Proposed change of use from retail to hot food
takeaway

ADDRESS OF SITE: 106 Widnes Road, Widnes

WARD: Appleton

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to conditions
CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The proposal was advertised by way of site notice and neighbours consulted.
The Council’s Highways Engineer and Environmental Health Officer have also
been consulted.

The Council’'s Highways Engineer has no concerns with the application. The
Council’s Environmental Health Officer has objected on the basis that the unit
is not large enough for use as a hot food take away, that no area for food
storage has been shown, and that the limited space does not permit adequate
separation of raw and cooked food in order to prevent cross contamination.
With regard to noise and odour, there have been no objections raised by the
Environmental Health Officer, however, details relating to the extraction and
filter system and noise levels would be required prior to commencement of
development, should approval be granted.

Comments have been received from the Police Crime Prevention Officer with
regard to the proposed opening hours, as a Late Night Refreshment Licence
would be required if the outlet were to be open past 11pm.

One objection has been received from a neighbouring property regarding the
close proximity of the proposed outlet to residential homes and potential late
night noise and problems with litter. Concerns have also been raised from the
adjoining occupiers with regard to potential odour and waste problems.

Any further representations will be reported orally to the Committee.

SITE/LOCATION:



Page 17

The site comprises a mid terrace two storey property with an associated
enclosed yard area to the rear. The property is currently vacant but was
previously in use as a mobile phone repair shop at ground floor. The yard
area to the rear is accessed via Grenfell Street. To the front of the property
the frontages are staggered with the adjoining property (Holland and Co.
Accountants) set forward from the application site. The site falls within an
established commercial area with a mix of surrounding uses.

RELEVANT HISTORY:
There is no planning history of relevance to the proposed change of use.

DEVELOPMENT  PLAN  DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The site falls within the designated ‘Secondary Shopping Area’ of Widnes
Town Centre, within the Simms Cross ‘Retail and Leisure Allocation’, and also
within an ‘Environmental Priority Area’ within the Halton Unitary Development
Plan (UDP). The key policies, which relate to the development, are: -

S16 ‘Retail Hierarchy’, BE1 ‘General Requirements for Development’, BE2
‘Quality of Design’, BE3 ‘Environmental Priority Areas’, BE19 ‘Disabled
Access for Changes of Use, Alterations and Extensions’, TC1 ‘Retail and
Leisure Allocations’, TC8 ‘Non-Retail Uses within Primary and Secondary
Shopping Areas’, TC11 ‘Food and Drink Outlets’, PR2 ‘Noise Nuisance’, PR3
‘Odour Nuisance’ and TP12 ‘Car Parking’.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

The application proposes the change of use of the ground floor of the building
from a shop to a hot food takeaway. No external alterations to the building
are proposed apart from the installation of an extraction flue to the rear
elevation which is shown to be 300mm wide and a ramp at the front entrance
for the less mobile, of which limited details have been provided.

Planning Policy

The shopping policies of the UDP are designed to protect the vitality and
viability of the Borough’s Town and Neighbourhood Centres. In particular,
Policies S16 and TC8 are designed to ensure that people have access to a
good range of shops that meet their daily needs for food, clothing, medicine
and household goods. The relevant policies therefore only allow a minority
proportion of non-retail outlets e.g. restaurants, takeaways, banks and estate
agents within the ‘Primary Shopping Areas’ of Town Centres and in certain
Neighbourhood Centres.

However, on the fringes of the Town Centres, certain shopping streets are
designated ‘Secondary Shopping Areas’ where policy differs and a wider
variety of Town Centre uses including non-retail outlets such as hot food



Page 18

takeaways are normally permissible. Policy TC8 of the UDP states that there
will be no restriction on non-retail uses within the ‘Secondary Shopping
Areas’.

In addition, the site falls within the ‘Simms Cross Retail and Leisure Allocation’
in which Policy TC1 allows for hot food takeaways (Class A5) in this area.

On a separate matter, consideration has been given to the provision of a hot
food takeaway and the assumption that the outlet may provide food, which is
likely to be unhealthy in terms of high fat and salt content. Although it is
acknowledged in the UDP that there is a poor health position within the
Borough, and the improvement of the health of the Borough is a key aim of
the Council’s Corporate Plan, there are currently no planning policies to
support this issue. In the absence of planning policy, it is therefore
considered that in this instance, refusal on health grounds would neither be
appropriate nor a matter which could be defended on appeal.

Environmental Health

The application indicates that a flue will be erected and an extraction system
installed for the purpose of food preparation. As the proposed flue is shown
to be positioned on the rear elevation of the building and given that the
building line to the rear is staggered, the flue will be out of immediate sight.

An objection has been received from the adjoining property (No. 108 Widnes
Road) with regard to potential odours and discarded food. Comments from
the Environmental Health Officer have been received and details have been
requested with regard to the proposed extract system and filters prior to
commencement of development. In addition it has been requested that the
proposed flue is at least 1.5 metres above the eaves or the nearest openable
window. These matters have been conditioned accordingly, which will
address any neighbour concerns relating to potential odour. Furthermore, a
condition has been applied to ensure that details relating to a receptacle for
discarded food wrapping is submitted and approved.

The applicant has specified that the opening hours will be 17.00 until 23.55
every day.

To the rear of the building, there is an existing yard area, which is enclosed by
boundary fencing. The yard area is considered to be of a sufficient size for
the storage of trade bins and the gates onto Grenfell Street are of a sufficient
width for refuse collections.

One objection has been received from a neighbouring property with regard to
the potential harm to occupiers of nearby residential properties. However, the
nearest residential properties are along Frederick Street, Gladstone Street
and two flats to the rear above No. 31 Gerrard Street. These are not
considered to be within immediate proximity to the site, and therefore the
impact on residential amenity is considered to be minimal. Any matters
relating to noise emitted from the extract system and litter will be addressed
by way of planning condition.



Page 19

On a separate matter, an objection has been received from the Environmental
Health Officer relating poor food hygiene that would occur and that the
premises are unsuitable for a hot food takeaway. However, these issues are
not planning matters and are not considered to be strong grounds for refusal.
Any matters relating to food hygiene can be dealt with under separate
legislation. However, this matter can be dealt with by way of conditions and a
requirement will be placed upon the applicant to demonstrate the suitability of
the premises.

Conclusion

The proposed hot food take away is considered to create minimal impact
upon residential amenity, given that there are no residential properties within
immediate proximity to the site. Any concerns relating to odour, noise from
the extract system and litter will be controlled by way of condition. The
proposed use is considered to be in keeping with the surrounding mix of
commercial uses and although the poor health of the Borough is a concern,
this is not considered to be a material reason for refusal in this instance.
Highways have expressed no concerns with the proposal and concerns
relating to food hygiene and regeneration are not considered to be planning
matters. As such, it is considered that the application complies with Policies
S16, BE1, BE2, BE3, BE19, TC1, TC8, TC11, H8, PR2, PR3 and TP12 of the
Halton UDP. It is also acknowledged that this decision, when measured
against other Council ambitions is balanced and therefore, only if it can be
assured that a quality premises can be achieved is the proposal acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Standard condition relating to timescale and duration of the permission.

2. Prior to commencement, details of the provision of filtration, including
odour filters to suppress odour produced by cooking and food
preparation shall be submitted and approved. (BE1 and PR3)

3. Prior to commencement, details of the location and noise levels emitted
by the fan and motor of the extract system prior to its installation shall
be submitted and approved. (BE1 and PR2)

4. The extract system should extend at least 1.5m above the eaves of the
building and/or the nearest openable window. (TC11 and PR3)

5. The extract shall not be impeded by use of a ‘Chinaman’s hat’ or cowl.
(TC11 and PR3)

6. Details of the provision of a receptacle for use by customers of the
premises for the deposit of discarded food wrapping to be submitted to
and approved in writing and maintained thereafter. (TC11)

7. Details of internal floor layouts and plans required.




Page 20

PLAN 1a

h
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

PLAN NUMBER 08/00459/FUL

8 December 2008

Railway Plantation




Page 21

r\ PLAN 1b
——~—=X"— PLAN NUMBER 08/00459/FUL

HALTON LayouT PLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 8th December 2008
COMMITTEE




Page 22

)r\\' PLAN 1c

PLAN NUMBER 08/00459/FUL
HALTON PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 8th December 2008
COMMITTEE
HOUSE TYPI
=TT 08/00459]Fu
=4 i =T o
1911 _&L M’i el 53’%
e

Ut/uugJ9R




Page 23

)r\ PLAN 1d
—~——\~—  PLAN NUMBER 08/00459/FUL
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 8 December 2008

i, - S i [—— g SE——

4 w5 ERA
g
Vo

*

& i R




Page 24

PLAN NUMBER 08/00534/COU

PLAN 2a

h
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

8 December 2008

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Scale 1:500




Page 25

)r\ PLAN 2b
—~—="— PLAN NUMBER 08/00534/COU

HALTON LayouT PLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 8th December 2008
COMMITTEE

s w&f BITING  SEVRITY FENCING.

f
[ o e -
T/ BB -
s oo v o SHAOED TR REDRESENSS THE EAATING (BBLEP
- T y ' STRp EOGING th TE TURKING CIRCLE KD (H4E
~of WP PR BE) | V17 51 citete | LANDSCAPED AREAS.
: Bl PRULOTED PENCE KILG fo€ PORTIONED ©
T Dad LUNG ROE OF BHE TP 4440 Ml WAGE
! 8 THE ORIGINKL REAR GREDEN KIS 14K &k
REMOVED GG THE NEk! FENCE K E0EM

(8 - porz
L Ay nl\..‘l n
iy,
- & NN, IS0
"B ORITINGOUS FENCE Wity THE REAHNCER

( abisd HElBHT Z-000 M. \m eI ~
L T T-l-l—]TlTl-'Tr -

R, Sip RIEL OF THE NE FENCE kit COMDRAE
@ PHPLAD 0K FEATHENELGLD BORLONE | -

m
it i
!“I'!-’.H LT—
N THIR Pt FERCE PANELS KA Bk SULPORTED By
” H ‘I'Jl_”*\ COMRER PINFT ST (K4 CONRETE :
S B o e lowlER FENCE PANELS Kl B FORKED
CUNNTT by PRECKS CoRcalse paness. = =

OO TTONATOON |

\. - L

" Details of ;;répés:ed_fenge to be erected at 11
James Close West Bank Widnes Halton WAS8 DB
forMr & Mrs Wallace. - Oct




Page 26

)r\ PLAN 2c
—~~——\"——  PLAN NUMBER 08/00534/COU
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 8 December 2008




Page 27

}\\_ PLAN 3a

PLAN NUMBER 08/00537/COU
HALTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 8 December 2008

|
|
|
|
\
|
|
\
|
\

Car Park

-~
~
~~ -
Sea——

Scale 1:500

© CROWN COPYRIGHT RESERVED

-~
~
-~
~




Page 28

r\ PLAN 3b
— —~—=X{"— PLAN NUMBER 08/00537/COU

HALTON LayouT PLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 8th December 2008
COMMITTEE

E

. Do Mot Scale off Deawangs
wes Road All dimensions 1o be checked oo 5 b'[(_m xxxxx peior o commencement of
_ - @ i {hm i © account of the
. S o
U $ nrm ir 12 tummencomont of

Coppright l‘\udyw\;hgluns mnmuawmummd-mg
r rm new ramp may not be prined witheat sushorization
(ekwﬂnl:k—dwru

Opening scalable wimdny | Rolley sharess

Moa slip flooe comssing_|

T <
o \/

] sy

Nr 104 Nr 108
padded wall finisbed with !
Plastes com, pleted wath impervicus wall cow 7 Mo slip fhoe eenverimg tamber Gooe 1imm
stainless wedl sheeting for cxample) ‘1. }.w'rnn public m:(?S = 50 foca jomss
: A F| @400 cos with Z2mm T&G bording). Seep 1o be
Ovens and cookers to be pu ced om this wall with 7] o 4 sy raem sept 08 [More detail added
Pt orce, The s extractnd i pass : farmed unier the scc P } A [sep

theough the Elre: h:mkfo:‘!pwmg&w il Non slip floor covering '

. ! Batbmer @eozgw’ Fovvices
; Architectural Services
265 Lunts Heath Road,

dnlgncrwﬂh:k e into accoant ¢ h!vqtlu:! Widnes.
m::' ¢ Bty s e outid i in e Cheshire.
WAS 5BB
0151 420 3241
:f“u;: .:;‘d in sceordance with their { Philbalmet@aol.com

_ \]_\mw;:;: - | C.l-;:;u-]ge-‘of_; Use to Hot |

chamber to b installed

exatany draitage fytem FOOd Take away @
: : . 106 Widnes Road,
Widnes

Scale 1:100 @%} et
Date September 2008 (} f}ﬂ
N """'

“\\W“-“wd-
Drg Nr 04 \3_..,-- .
Block Plan and Site Layout

o

‘4,‘# cining secuchy Grenfell Street
Ecncing and gateway .




Page 29

)r\ PLAN 3c

~—~~——"~— p|_AN NUMBER 08/00537/COU
HALTON PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

8th December 2008
COMMITTEE

) i | A [sept 08 |More detail added
D D }/ ; RBalmerv Desigre Sorvvices

Existing Rear Elevation ’ 4 Architectural Services
- . 265 Lunts Heath Road,
Widnes. |
Cheshire. ’ '
WAS SBB
0151 420 3241
Philbalmer@aol.com

Change of Use to Hot
Food Takeaway @
106 Widnes Road,
Widnes

Scale 1:100 @A3
Date September 2008

Drg Nr 03 i
Rear Elevations ‘
' |




Page 30

)r\ PLAN 3d
—~~——\"——  PLAN NUMBER 08/00537/COU
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 8 December 2008

BEAS W eaama
‘Il} . }_‘_1!!.

F

| / -~

IT f [ I - g ! y ¥ ¥ i

X ¥y ¥
&

¥

11 -1‘._ J _’{ ‘.HI n\‘i - I:‘I
j +I.#'£g } .l'f y 7y




Page 31

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

AMENDMENTS/REVISION LIST

08 December Committee

P@gE LIST A LIST B AMENDMENTS
7 08/00459/FUL
13 08/00534/COU
16 08/00537/COU




Page 32 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 8" December 2008
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment

SUBJECT: Miscellaneous ltems

1) The following applications have been withdrawn: -

08/00479/0UT Outline application (with landscape matters reserved) for
proposed erection of 15 No. dwellings, provision of access and
associated works at Eight Towers, Weates Close, Widnes,
Cheshire

08/00506/FUL Proposed two storey side extension at 13 Deirdre Avenue,
Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 6PA

2) The following applications have been returned: -

08/00495/FUL Proposed conservatory to rear of 9 Millwood, Runcorn,
Cheshire, WA7 6UN

08/00512/FUL Proposed single storey side extension at Hideaway, 5
Cheshyres Lane, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 4L.G

08/00545/FUL Proposed single storey rear extension at 23 Kensington Close,
Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 3BA

1) Appeals were lodged following the Council’s refusal of the following application:-

08/00294/FUL Proposed two storey side extension at 35 Whernside
Widnes



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
	0800459FULa
	0800459FULb
	0800459FULc
	0800459FULd
	0800534COUa
	0800534COUb
	0800534COUc
	0800537COUa
	0800537COUb
	0800537COUc
	0800537COUd
	AMENDMENTS LIST December 20082

	4 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

